
 Cherokee County Board of Commissioners 
 WORK SESSION MINUTES  

 

August 5, 2014 
3:00 p.m. | Cherokee Hall 

The Chairman began at 3:04 p.m. with all Commissioners present. Chairman 
Ahrens read an excerpt from Mac Anderson’s “Successories” about an attitude of 
ownership. Note: Ms. Angie Davis arrived at 3:05 p.m., having been downstairs in 
a meeting. 
 
 

1. Standard and Poor’s Review Presentation by Janelle Funk. 
 
 
Ms. Funk shared a presentation for the Standard and Poor’s review. She explained 
the definition of credit ratings and how the ratings are used. Standard and Poor’s 
ratings scale run from AAA, the highest rating, to D, the lowest rating. Ms. Funk 
listed several surrounding counties and cities at the highest rating and stated that 
Cherokee County is AA+, which is also very good. Commissioner Johnston asked if 
she had an idea of other counties other than the ones listed. Ms. Funk stated she 
did not but would get that information to them. She went on to explain the 
process of rating. She stated that during the review, she wanted to make sure 
there was a full understanding of the County’s CAFR, reminding the analyst the 
fiscal year had changed. Ms. Funk provided an explanation of the fund balance and 
presented the results from the tax digest and building permits. She mentioned 
that they discussed the millage rate and feels the analyst was pleased to see a 
willingness with the Commissioners when they saw a need for raises for public 
safety employees. She shared with them the strength of property taxes in the 
County. Ms. Funk moved on to recall the discussion on SPLOST. She indicated the 
analyst asked her where we see the SPLOST going, noting the dip in 2013. She 
said she explained that the TAVT takes money away from SPLOST but since the 
Outlet Shoppes have opened, it has helped more than offset that decrease and 
that as of July, collections are on track to beat pre-recession levels. Ms. Funk 
stated she was asked questions about the County’s borrowing and they wanted to 
know if there is enough cash on hand to get through the year. She added they 
made it clear that they don’t use TANs. She expressed to the analyst that she 
believes the cash reserves are sufficient and there should be no reason to borrow 
TANs in the future. Ms. Funk presented the County’s budget flexibility and she said 
she was asked if there was any pressure to not increase the millage rate and what 
other options the County has. She shared an example from 2011 of measures 



Work Session August 5, 2014                                                                                             Page 2 of 6 

 

taken to stretch the budget such as having all organizations reduce their budget 
by 8%, making changes to insurance plans, and positions that were frozen were 
eliminated. Another factor that effect Standard and Poor’s ratings is 
unemployment levels. We are the second lowest in the metro area. She added 
they also like to see growth, median income, and homeownership rates. These 
demonstrate the ability to pay millage rates in the future. Ms. Funk stated they 
spent a good bit of time discussing development, new jobs, the investment, and 
the plans of the employers for the future. She shared with the analyst the newest 
developments and upcoming developments in the County.  She stated they 
discussed other items that keep the County a compelling place to live including 
accessibility to the nearest hub; the $90M investment in parks, recreation, and 
greenspace; and the County high schools making the grade in national rankings. 
Ms. Funk stated she shared with the analyst how Cherokee County compares to 
area counties in FTEs per capita and that we have the second lowest expenditures 
per capita. 
 
Ms. Funk stated that Mr. Bryce Holcomb gave his opinion on what he thought 
would be a big jump for the County to move up to AAA because we are just 
showing our progress and feels like Standard and Poor’s would want to see more 
and would want to see the tax digest grow next year and are keeping the reserves 
we said we would keep.  He said S&P would want all the things that are happening 
to continue. He feels the County should receive an AA+ with a positive outlook. 
Ms. Funk said we should know the results in about two weeks. Commissioner 
Johnston asked if it would be meaningful in terms of long-term bond financing to 
jump to AAA. Ms. Funk responded that she wasn’t sure because Wells Fargo had 
given them a great rate on the bonds.  She also said that they, along with another 
bank, were surprised the County was not AAA rated. Commissioner Johnston 
commented that Mr. Holcomb would be able to determine how much an AAA rating 
would affect the bond rating. Ms. Funk said she would follow up and get the 
information back to the Board. Chairman Ahrens commented that the Opportunity 
Zone is something unique and relevant from the standpoint of attracting 
businesses. Ms. Funk stated they did not cover that in the review but that she 
would call and make sure they are aware. 
 
 

2. Discussion of Regular Agenda Items. 
 
 
The Chairman shared that the Creekview High School Rocketry Team that won 
here in the U.S. then went to England to compete and came in second place in the 
World. 
 



Work Session August 5, 2014                                                                                             Page 3 of 6 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1. A Public Hearing will be held at the Cherokee County Administrative Complex, 

Cherokee Hall, 1130 Bluffs Parkway, Canton, GA 30114 at 6:00 p.m. on August 
5, 2014 to consider amendments to the Cherokee County Zoning 
Ordinance, Article 23 Conservation Design Community. 

 
Mr. Jeff Watkins presented the suggested amendments to the Conservation Design 
Community standards. One of the requests is to change the front setback to be 
uniform 30 feet and to leave the rear setback alone. The next changes are 
regarding design standards to eliminate building setbacks to cropland and 
pastureland, and language qualifying “cropland” and “pastureland”; establish “75 
ft.” as setback from “buildings or barnyards housing livestock”; delete “per Health 
Dept. requirements”; and renumbering the section. The next change is the size of 
the buffer, deleting the table showing the minimum exterior boundary buffer and 
going back to a uniform minimum 50’ buffer. The last change is part of the four 
step design process distance from Primary Conservation Areas as 75’ and 25’ from 
Secondary Conservation Areas. Commissioner Johnston referred to the setbacks 
and stated that goes against what he thought they were going for and thought 
they were going to move it to the middle of the range rather than the minimum. 
He asked what would the impact would be of going to the middle of the range. Mr. 
Watkins stated that the impact to a 5,000 square foot lot size would be significant. 
The Chairman suggested the larger lots be at 50’ and the mid-size and smaller lots 
remain at 35’. Mr. Watkins stated that in a conventional neighborhood, the 
standard would be 35’.  
 
 
2. The Cherokee County Board of Commissioners shall conduct a Public Hearing 

regarding the abandonment of a portion of Rosewood Circle on August 5, 
2014 at 6:00 p.m. in the Cherokee County Administrative Complex at 1130 
Bluffs Parkway, Canton, GA 30114. 

 
Mr. Geoff Morton gave an overview of both abandonment requests, stating that 
they were pretty straight forward. 
 
 
3. The Cherokee County Board of Commissioners shall conduct a Public Hearing 

regarding the abandonment of a portion of Trinity Overlook on August 5, 
2014 at 6:00 p.m. in the Cherokee County Administrative Complex at 1130 
Bluffs Parkway, Canton, GA 30114. 

 



Work Session August 5, 2014                                                                                             Page 4 of 6 

 

 
 
Mr. Cooper went over five items under the Consent Agenda portion: 
 
 
1.1 Request to set a Public Hearing date for September 2, 2014 to consider 

corrections to Table 7.2 – Permitted Uses from the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

1.2 Approve acceptance of Juvenile Court sub-grant Agreement in the total 
amount of $117,534.00 and approve budget amendment increasing Multiple 
Grant Fund 250 revenues and expenses. 

 
1.3 Requesting approval to accept ACCG Summer & Fall Intern grant funds in 

the total amount of $4,346.00 for reimbursement to the County for costs 
incurred for implementation of a document/content management program; 
there is no cost to the County. 

 
1.4 Consider Sign Monument Indemnity Agreement for locating subdivision sign 

in the right-of-way between Cherokee County and the Creek View Manor 
Owners Association, Inc. 

 
1.5 Consider budget amendment in the amount of $27,747.93 allocating 

insurance recovery monies for purchase of replacement patrol unit. 
 
  
Mr. Cooper went over the ten items under the County Manager portion: 
 
2.1 Consider formal acceptance and authorize execution of SFY14 Sub-grant 

Agreement Amendments 2 and 3 for Senior Services in the amount of 
$695,230.00, and SFY15 Sub-grant Agreement with Atlanta Regional 
Commission (ARC) in the amount of $706,085.00. 

 
2.2 Consider a Development Agreement with Oak Hall Companies, LLC, for 

improvements to Trickum Road, north of Arnold Mill. 
 
Mr. Cooper stated that Oak Hall Companies would like to make a cash 
contribution of $137,500.00. They are going to develop 68.5 acres as a 
single-family residential subdivision. Commissioner Johnston asked if that 
would cover the cost. Mr. Cooper stated it would cover 40%. 
 

2.3 Consider approval of proposal from River Sand, Inc., to perform lake 
dredging operations at Crabapple Falls Lake in the amount of $97,990.00. 



Work Session August 5, 2014                                                                                             Page 5 of 6 

 

 
Commissioner Johnston commented that they had done this before and 
asked if this was to be on-going. Mr. Morton explained this is the first time 
for this lake but it had been done for another lake on Sixes Road.  
 

2.4 Consider Design Services Contract with Southeastern Engineering, Inc., for 
redesign of the Kellogg Creek Road at Woodstock Road Intersection 
Improvement Project in the amount of $31,500.00. 

 
2.5 Consider Design Services Contract with BM&K Construction and Engineering, 

the lowest qualified proposal, for design of the Wyngate Parkway at 
Bascomb Elementary School Intersection Improvement Project in the 
amount of $23,000.00. 

 
2.6 Consider Design Services Contract with Pond & Company, the lowest 

qualified proposal, for design of the East Cherokee Drive at New Dean Rusk 
Middle School Intersection Improvement Project in the amount of 
$56,850.00. 

 
Chairman Ahrens asked if the school system contributes toward the total 
cost. Mr. Morton replied that they donate the right-of-way. 

 
2.7 Consider approval of amendment to Professional Services Agreement with 

LAI Engineering for additional design services for the Hames Road 
Improvement Project in the amount of $49,150.00. 

 
2.8 Consider approval of Agreement for Transportation Enhancement Activities 

between Cherokee County and the Georgia Department of Transportation in 
the amount of $300,000.00 for the SR 92 and Robin Road Enhancement 
Project. 

 
2.9 Consider approval of lease agreement with Goodwill of North Georgia for 

operation of the Hobgood Park Recycling Center. Goodwill will pay the 
County an amount of $6,500.00 per month / $78,000.00 annually. 

 
Commissioner Johnston asked what the value is for them. Mr. Cooper replied 
that it is a high volume facility for donation drop-offs. 

 
2.10 It is requested that the Board of Commissioners approve the proposed 

revised new design concepts for Patriots Park and Hobgood Park, and 
approve a Change Order to the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with 
Smith Planning Group for additional design and engineering services for the 



Work Session August 5, 2014                                                                                             Page 6 of 6 

 

revised new Patriots Park; including the multipurpose field at Hobgood Park, 
in the not to exceed amount of $75,000.00. 

Mr. Cooper listed the amenities that would change and those that would stay 
the same. Discussion ensued regarding the multipurpose fields and the 
meadow field and the ability to use them for football, soccer, and lacrosse 
practices and games. Mr. Bill Echols stated that the Hobgood field will be the 
County’s first with synthetic turf which will be helpful in wet weather. He 
added the field will be lit also. 

 

Ms. Davis went over one item under the County Attorney portion: 
 
3.1 Notice of Annexation from City of Ball Ground for 5.85 acres of property 

located at 106 Sharp Mountain Church Lane. 
 
Ms. Davis stated the property is owned by Sharp Mountain Church, the 
applicant.  There is no change in zoning or in use. It will continue to be 
church and cemetery use. They are simply seeking annexation into the City. 
Ms. Davis said her staff saw no reason to object. She added that the letter 
requesting the annexation stated the only reason the applicant gave was 
they wanted more police protection. Ms. Davis stated that if there be no 
potential objection under the land dispute resolution statute, she will just 
provide that for information and no action will be needed by the Board. 

 
 
Adjourn 

Hearing no further items, Commissioner Johnston made a motion to adjourn to 
Executive Session at 4:14 p.m. to discuss property acquisition and disposition, 
personnel matters, pending and threatened litigation. Commissioner Nelms 
seconded and the motion was unanimously approved.  


